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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Introduction

The Trustees of The Collegrate Trust (“the Trust“ “TCT") present this Annual Report together with the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Report of the charitable company for the year beginning 1st September 2022 and
"ending 31st August 2023. This Report serves the purposes of both.a Trustees' Report,'and a Directors’ Report
under company law.

TCT operated five primary and two secondary schodls in the London Borough of Croydon and in' West Sussex in
the year covered by this repoit, with another secondary school, Woodcote High School, (in Croydon) joining the
Trust most recently on 1st April 2023. Woodcote High School is a larger than average secondary with 1200
students on roll, and has begun to work closely with other schaols. within the Trust, particularly with other
secondary schools. These eight schools have a combined pupil capacrty of 6,163 and had a roll of 5,802 in the
school census in October 2023. Two of the primary schools operate ‘nursery provision; two of the primary
schools and one of the secondary schools include an’ Enhanced Learning Provision (ELP) and all of the
seoondary schools offer post-1 6 provision. .

" Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution
TCT is a company limited by guarantee and an ‘exempt charity. The charitable oompanys ‘memorandum and
articles of association are the primary goveming documents of the Trust. The Trustees of TCT are also the

directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company. law. The- chantable company is also known as
The Collegiate Trust. '

. Details of the Trustees-who served during the year and to.the date these accounts are approved are included in.- '
the Reference and Administrative Détails on page 1. ’

Members’ Liability .

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound.up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be fequired, not exceeding £10, for thé debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be-
a member. .

Trustees’ Indemnities

~ The Trust indemnifies Trustees through the Risk Protection Arrangement.

Method of Recruitment and Appomtment or Electron of Trustees

Members appornt by ordinary resolutron six trustees. Trustees co-opt five further trustees to ensure a correct
-balance of skill.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

New Trustees are issued with a detailed Induction Pack, which includes required online training modules; they
are supported by the Trust's Govemnance and Compliance Manager. Trustees can access on-going training
through NGA, Academy Ambassadors and Octavo Partnership. The Trust holds an annual Governarnce Day .
which brings togethér Members, Trustees and Local Governors.

‘ Trus_t'ees complete an annual Skills Audit which informs training plans.
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Organisational structure
TCT is a multi-academy trust.

The CEO is the Accounting Officer of the Trust. He works with an Executive Team made up of CFO and
Director of Education who are joined by the other leaders in the Central Team and the Principals/Heads of
School of each academy to develop short- and medium-term pians for the management and development of the
Trust.

The Members have delegated the strategic leadership and monitoring of the Trust to a Board of eleven Trustees
/ Directors (“the Board").

During 2022/2023, the Board reviewed its approach to managing audit and finance issues and decided to
separate the finance and audit oversight into two Committees for the beginhing of the academic year 2023/24:
Audit & Risk Committee arid the Finance & Capital Committee. The Learning and Quality Committee (LQC)
continued in 2022/23 to exercise oversight of educational standards across the Trust. -

Each school in the Trust has a Local Governing Body‘ (LGB) which operates through a Scheme of Delegation
and Terms of Reference approved by the Board.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
CEO

The CEO is paid ona 5-point scale as shown in the contract of employment; no other benefits (other than a
mobile phone, laptop and travel expenses) were paid to the CEO in 2022/23 (other than employer’s contributions
to the Teachers' Pension Scheme).

~ The CEO Is subject to an annual performance review, conducted by a subcommittee of non-executive Board
members. In reviewing performance and salary, this Remuneration Committee (RemCom) considers:

. Educational outcomes across the Trust
. Leadership of the Trust
. Growth and complexity of the Trust

This is within the context of the Trust's annual Strategic Plan and agreed Trust objectlves This subcommittee
makes a recommendation to the full Board — from which discussion the CEO is excluded — about quallty of
performance and salary level.

Executive Team

Members of the Executive Team (CFO & Director of Education) are paid on a 5-point range within the national
Leadership Scale. These staff are subject to an annual performance review, conducted by the CEO (except in
the case of the CFO whose performance and salary is reviewed by the Chair of the Board as part of the
mitigation of conflict that arises as a consequence of the CEO and the CFO being married to each other). The
outcomes of this and decisions on salary are ratified by RemCom.

Principals

Each Principal is paid on a 7-point range within the Leadership Scale which may be amended in line with
provisions within STPCD. Each Principal is subject to an annual performance review, conducted by a
subcommittee of two LGB members, advised by the CEO or his nominee. In reviewing performance and salary,
this committee considers:

e  Educational outcomes in the school
. Leadership of the school
. Contribution as a leader across the wuder Trust
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by. guarantee)

Trustees’ report (contmued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

This subcommitteée makes a decision about quality of performance and salary level, except in any cases of high
salaries of £100,000 or over, in which casé a recommendation is made to RemCom for ratification.

Relevant union officials
Relévant union officials

Number of Employees who were relevant union 2
“officials during the relevant period

Full-time ,eqdi'v‘alént‘ number-employee number : 12

Percentage of time spend on facility time

Percentage of time S Number of employees
0% , : -
1%-50% ~ 1
51:99% ' : : -
100% 1

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Provide the total cost-of facility time ~ : : £11,967

Provide the total pay bill - £23,846,812
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time 0.05%

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as A 0.06%
a percentage of total paid facility time hours

Related Parties and othe_rConnected Charities and Organisations

TCT owns 100% of the share capital of The Collegiate Trust Trading Limited (“the Trading Company"). The Trust
provides management support through the Executive Team; no financial support is provided. Surpluses and
profits from the Trading Company which are subject to corporation tax are- made as a charitable donation to the
Trust. The main function of the Trading Company is to provnde catenng provision to schools wuthm the trust and
to a-selection of schoo|s outside of the trust.

The Trust has considered value for money when making changes to catering contracts, including benchmarking
costs against external suppliers and most importantly the quality of meals provided to pupils and students. . .

The CEO is a Director of the Croydon Headteachers’ Association Limited and of Riddlesdown CRe8 Limited. He

was ‘also a governor at Croydon College 'until 31st August 2023. These are -voluntary and unrémunerated
positions for the benefit of wider education provision.
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Trust recognises and values our duty under the Equality Act 2010 to eliminate discrimination, advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations in regard to age, disability, ethnicity, gender, religion and sexual
identity. This is set out in the Trust's Equalities Policy & Statemeént of Objectives. This includes:

Compliance with the Public Sectar Equality Duty (PSED) set out in clause 149 of the Equality Act 2010

. Provision of equality of opportunity for all and ensuring that all stages of recruitment and selection are fair
Job descriptions, person specifications and advertisements do not discriminate against disabled persons,
either directly or indirectly

. Disabled persons who are judged by the manager/panel to meet all essential shortllstmg criteria must be
included on the shortlist

. Decisions as to who is the best person for the job should be taken on the basis of the criteria in the person
specification alone

e  Once the panel has selected the best candidate(s) for the post they should consider the effect of the
disability and determine whether it can be overcome by adaptation of the working environment at a
reasonable cost

. All new members of staff are required to complete a heaith questionnaire and submit this to the
Occupational Health Services (OHS). OHS in its report recommends any-adjustments required for the
individual. Adaptations may include adjustments to the working arrangements of the existing team where
appropriate

.. If a current member of staff becomes disabled or experiences a change in their pre-existing disability, the

Trust will consider and implement reasonable adjustments to enable the colleague to continue in their role.
As part of this, a referral to OHS may be initiated if further assessment is required

. The Trust considers and reviews the developmental needs of disabled colleagues reguiarly and provndes
relevant training and support in this respect.
. Disability must not prevent colleagues from getting promoted and they should be given the same

opportunities as others. We regularly analyse salary levels and comparisons, applications and promotlon
opportunities to ensure that there are no anomalies or barriers to equallty

The Trust has an established system for consuiting with employees on .a regular basis on matters which affect
them. Standard practices include: .

. Weekly staff briefing meetings

Team meetings

1:1 with line managers

Interim and annual staff appraisal process for formal feedback on performance

Following appropriate policies and ACAS guidelines for any change management, such as amendments
to contracts of employment.

o e o o

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust

In accordance with the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, the Trust has demonstrated
how it has promoted the need to foster good business relationships with suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders.

All engagement .with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship are conducted in accordance
with the Trust's Financial Policy and Procedures and after any potential impacts and risks have been assessed
and mitigated. Engagement is only considered in the best interests of the Trust and its stakeholders.
. The Trust's aim is to utilise its resources effectively to provide exceptional education to all and to provide a safe
and healthy environment in which to do so. The long-term financial sustainability is key to decision-making,
particularly in response to the challenging conditions of the past year.

The Trust aims to conduct all its business relationships with high levels of integrity and courtesy.
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The Collegiate Trust
.(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Objectives and Activities
Objects and Aims

TCT exists to improve education in Croydon and Crawley for children and young people up to the age of
eighteen, thereby preparing them from an early age to be successful adults. We have built a local partnership of
eight schools which work collaboratively to deliver our vision of exceptional.education for all.

We define an exceptional education as one that delivers wonderful academic learning and progress, but puts
right alongside this the development of wider skills and qualities that come through a balanced focus on creative,
cuitural and physical learning, as well as personal development. .

This is driven by strong LGBs in each school operating to a clear schemé of delegation, working with an expert
principal and team of staff. The successful learners developed in our schools become.confident individuals and
responsible citizens in our modern British society. '

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
The Trust Board approved a set of Strategic Dnvers for 2022-2025 to guide our work. These are:

" Delivering Exceptional Education (Trust Improvement Strategy)
Investing in People (HR Strategy)
Providing High Quality Business Support (Financial Strategy)
Growing the Organisation (Growth Strategy)

Each of thesé drivers was delivered through a set of agreed actions in the Trust Strategic Plan, with key
otitcomes identified across the Trust and within each school.

Public Benefit

in setting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have carefully consndered the Charity
Commission's general guidance on public benefit.

Each school within the Trust has its own specific admissions ’ar_rangemeﬁts, which are set in line with the
Statutory Admissions Code. Most pupils and students live locally to our'schools.

Strategic Report
Achievements and Performance
Extemnal assessment in primary and secondary schools resumed in 2022 for the first time since the pandemic.

Outcomes demonstrate good progress, with GCSE, A Level & BTEC students securing excellent future
pathways, including Russell Group and Oxbridge entrants.
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

2023 GCSE ) A Level

4EM SEM Att8 P8 A*-A | A*-B | A*-C | A*-E
Riddlesdown | 81% 66% 56.3 | +0.50 | 23% 58% 86% 89%
Collegiate ‘ ]
The Quest 59% 43% 415 -0.56 2% 22% 35% 97%

| Academy
Woodcote 68% 53% 479 | +0.23 | 12% 37% 67% 96%
High School o ‘
2023 ) . KS2 Expected Standard . )
Reading Writing Maths RWM

Courtwood 63% 67% 73% 53%
Kenley 59% 63% 59% 37%
Quest Primary 48% 67% 48% 38%
Gossops Green 67% 68% 69% 52%
Waterfield 77% 82% 79% _ 67%

. Ofsted

In the academic year 2022/23, there were three Ofsted inspections across the Trust: Courtwood Primary School
remains a GOOD school (in an ungraded inspection); Quest Primary -School moved from REQUIRES
IMPROVEMENT to a GOOD -school (in a graded inspection); and Riddlesdown Collegiate remains an
OUTSTANDING school (in a graded inspection).

Growth of the Trust

The Trust's Growth Strategy, as approved by the ,Bdard in spring 2021, has three clear interlocking themes,
focusing on growth as an organisation as much as on the scale of the organisation. We réfer to these themes as
our growth hierarchy. : .

" The foundation of our hierarchy, the most important part of our growth agenda, is COHESION between our
schools. This does not mean all doing the same in every aspect of our work, but focuses on the development of
new expertise through collaborative work — the partnership dividend.

The middle layer of our hierarchy covers the ACTIVITY that we choose to deliver ourselves in order to guarantee
quality. This ranges from staff development and training to our catering and IT services. It also includes the
provision of professional services, including finance and school improvement to schools outside of the Trust.

SCALE is at the top of the hierarchy, not because it is the most important but because it is the most visible
aspect of growth. We are looking for the right partners to join our Trust, schools that will add value and achieve
benefit from working with like-minded colleagues. We have ambitions to grow to 12-15 schools over the coming
few years. In 2022/23, the number of schools increased by one. '
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Key Financial Performance Indicators

The Trust's financial position is under ongoing review; monthly management accounts are provided to each
school Principal, with consolidated Trust accounts provided to Trustees and considered at the Audit, Risk &
Finance Committee and Trust Board at least six-times a year. The key finantial ‘performance measure IS to set
and then to deliver a balanced budget.

To support this work, the percentage of staff costs in proportion to total income and the average teacher cost are
monitored through our approach to integrated curriculum and financial plannlng Further, self-assessment
toolkits for each academy provide RAG ratings against which benchmarking can be performed. The results are
used alongside non-financial performance lndlcators to make informed decusnons on the direct impact of teachlng .
and learning,

The financial performance of The Collegiate Trust Trading Limited is monitoréd through monthly management
accounts and measured against the budget set for'the year. :

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has .
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseéable future. For this reason, it continues
to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

The performance dunng the year was slightly below the budget plan and pro;ections and a small affordable
deficit was achleved despite the significant financial chailenges.

The budget pro;ectuons for the next three years show the Trustin a. posmon to achieve an overall surplus posntmn
in-each year.

Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting
Policies.

Promoting Success

The Board of Trustees understands its obligation to act in a way most tikely to promote the successof the Trust.
In doing so, the Board has regard to:

the likely consequences of any decision in the long term

the interests of the Trust's employees :

the need to foster the Trust's business relationships with suppliers, stakeholders and others
the impact of the Trust's operations on the community and the environment

the desirability of the Trust mamtalnlng a reputation for high standards of business conduct
the need to act fairly as between members of the Trust

In practice, therefore, the Board aligns its decision- -making with the Trust's. Strategic Plan and adopts policies
(e.g. Performance Development Policy, Salary Policy, Grievance Pohcy & Procedures) which enable the Trust to
promote success. . _
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued). '
for the year ended 31 August 2023
Financial Review

The Trust adheres to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook (ATH) The Trust's Financial Policy and
Procedures informs day-to-day practice.

Tpe fi nancialperfonnance of the Trust for the period ending 31st August 2023 is as follows:

In-year surplus./ (deficit) t £32,1,46,645>
Reserves — restricted , £93,337,485
Reserves — unrestricted £1,622,212

The malority of i mcome that the Trust receives is from:the ESFA in the form of recurrent grant funding. The use
.of this funding is’ restricted to educational purposes. All grants received during the. year are .shown in the
Statement of anancial Actnvuties

In the year ending 31st. August 2023 total expendituré of £37 063,002 was covered by the grant funding with
additional incoming resources.

At 31st August 2023 the net book value of fixed assets was £93, ;337,485 and movements are shown in note 14,
Al assets are used primarily for providing.education and associated support sérvices to the pupils,and students -
of the Trust.

The year ended 31st August 2023 was another challenging year with increased cost of living awards .and rising
cost.of supplies. Despite these challenges, the Trust has maintained its fi nancial stablhty and met-all statutory
obllgations through effective use of resources and streamlined spending.

The Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: The Teachers' Pension Scheme England and
Wales (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The outstanding liability for the LGPS
reported in the financial statements is guaranteed to be met by the Department for Education in the event of
academy closure.

The trading company faced a challenging year in maintaining the level of service amidst shortages iin supply,
rising cost of food items and recruitment issues. The company made a loss of £60,993.

Reserves Policy

~The Trust operates annually to a balanced' budget, uses reserves to support muiti-year payback mvestment
activity, builds and maintains adequate reserves to enable the Trust Board to ensure ‘continuity of operatlon in

event of unmitigated / unforeseen risks.

During the year, the Trust commltted £185k to supportlng two schools with growing puplllstudent numbers in
advance of the lagged funding arrangements in place.

The Trust has committed to maintain (or restore) a cash reserve of 5% of the gross General Annual Grant
income.

Investment Policy

The Trust currently holds no investments other than funds held in the Trust's bank accounts.
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023 .'

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Trust has identified four areas of risk: strategic (St), operational (Op), compliance (Co), financial (Fi). Details
of these risks are set out in the Risk Management Plan which is overseen by Audit, Risk & Finance Committee

(ARFC) (going forwards from 2023/24; this will be the Audit & Risk Committee).

Risks around the safety of school buildings are included in Op8. Trustees take seriously their responsibility for
ensuring that the estate remains safe and well-maintained through risk assessments and compliance checks.

The following table summarises the areas of risk which are currently (September 2023) marnaged through the

plan:

Ref | Risk

St1 The Strategic Plan is not a relevant and robust response to the needs of the Trust

st2 The Trust seeks to grow without a clear rationale

$t3 The Trust does not plan effectively to manage the potential confllct of interest between
the CEO and CFO

St4 Individual schools do not recruit sufficient learners to make them viable

'St5 The Development Plans of individual schools are not relevant to the needs of the schools

St6 The Trust Board does not have a robust organisational approach in place to deliver
effective local governance of each school -

St7 The CEO or a school Principal is absent for a prolonged period of time

St8 Effective Due Diligence not carried out before growth of TCT T

St9 Quality of work in the ELPs not high

Opl | Management Information {on t&I) produced by individual schools is of a poor quality and
is inadequate for informing decision-making

Op2 | The Trust has insufficient Directors who possess the capacnty, skills and experience
required to run the Trust

|1 Op3 | School staff at key levels do not possess the skills and experience required to lead and

: manage the schools

Op4 | The Trust fails to manage its growth and development effectwely

Op5 | Quality assurance work does not effectively identify areas of weakness and strength

Op6 | The Trust has inadequate insurance cover

Op7 | The Trust suffers a catastrophic IT failure or significant cyber attack

Op8 | The Trust suffers major damage to or loss of a site

0;39 Individual schools do not have sufficient quallty teaching staff or curnculum leaders to
deliver the curriculum -

Op10 | The Trust is unable to operate its schools safely or effectively due to industrial action
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Col | The Trust does not comply with employee legislation

Co2 The Trust does not comply with financial reporting réequirements

Co3 The Trust does not comply with GDPR, Data Protection and FOI requirements

Co4 | The Trust does not comply with safeguarding requirements

Cos The Trust does not have an effectnve system of controls to break transmission of

' coronavirus v

Fil The Trust does not maintain overall financial control in relation to its income and
expenditure

Fi2a | The Budget Plan does not pravide a realistic or effective response to the income or needs
of the Trust

Fi2b | The Trust does not respond effectively to falling or statlc income

Fi2c | Income falls unexpectedly or income targets not achieved eg. as a result of lockdown

Fiad | Planned expansion of Trading Company. creates greater risk in the event of trading
.| opportunities being curtailed by lockdown

Fi3 The financial systems of t_he Trust are not suitable and maintained

Fia There is no adequate Disaster Recovery Plan in place in relation to the Trust's financial
systems

FiS- The Trust fails to anticipate risk of adequate funding of pensions

Fi6 The Trust is unable to prevent fraud

Fi7 Energy costs outstrip budgeted levels

Fig Cost of living settlements for teachers and support staff in'2023 outstrip budgéted provision

Fi9 Loss at employment tribunal for former Headteacher (WHS)

Fundraising
The Trust does not undertake any fundraising through commercial or professional fundraisers.

Each schoot within the Trust raises a-limited amount of funds through voluntary. parental donations and through
schoo! events. All such funds are recorded in the Trust's finance system

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Quantification and reporting methodology: the report is in accordance with the 2019 HM Government
Environmental Reporting Guidelines and has been prepared using the GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate
Standard and the 2022 UK Government conversion factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement: the chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
per pupil, the recommended ration for the sector

Meas urcs taken to improve energy efficiency: the Trust has continued to use video conferencing technology

for staff meetings where appropnatc and continucd to upgrade a programme of energy efficient LED light fittings
across the Trust.
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.- The Collegiate Trust

(Acompany limited by:guarantee)

Trustees report (continued) .

for the: year ended 31 August 2023

d_at_a for t,he period 1.Se_ptember 2022 31
. August 2023

Current

Comparison

Reporting year reporting year

‘Page 13

J | ' 2022/23 | 2001/22
Energy consumptlon used to. .
calculate emissions (kW) ' 4,638,461 3,982,952
Energy consumption break. down
(kWh): '
-G, 2634321 2,186,255
- Electritity - | 1,979.856 . 1,779,681
s Transport:fuel 6,242 6,282
emissions.in
‘ metric tonnes
"Scope'l €02 |
Gas consumption " 482.50 400.43
Transport - mini-buses 113 1.13
TotalScope 1 483.63 401.56
emissions in -
metric tonnes
Scope 2 - CO2e
Purchased electricity. 420.38 377.88
emissions in
metrictonnes -
Scope3 ~ CO2e
Business travel in employee: . )
owned \(ehig;les "~ 4.36 2.60
Total gross emissions in metric .
tonnes CO2e " 90837 - 782.04
Intensity ratio Tonnes:CO2e per- ‘
pupil 0.16 0.18



The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023 -
Plans for Future Periods

The Trust will continue to implement actions to deliver on the Strategic Drivers outlined on page 7. These drivers
have informed the TCT Strategic Plan 2022 — 2025.

TCT will grow wnth careful thought and planning in the coming years, to -ensure that growth continues to add
value to our work; this will be in line with the Growth Plan outlined eaflier on page 8.

Funds held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others

The Trust holds funds on behalf of the Croydon Headteachers' Association (CHTA). This supports the
development of educational aims across Croydon. The funds are held in a dedicated bank account which is
recorded on the Trust's system. CHTA is an incorporated organisation with its own set of Directors, who are
-accountable for these funds. . .

Polmcal donations

The Trust made no political donations in 2022/23.

Auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

. theré is no relevant-audit information of which the Trust's auditor is unaware )
. the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant

audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of the information.

The auditor, Kreston Reeves LLP.‘. has indicated its willingness to continue in office. The Trustees will propose a
motion re-appointing the auditor at a ‘meeting of the Members.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
’ iectors, on 14 December 2023 and sngned on its behalf by:

. ARG DT beveroc AN .
MrPR Aﬁg‘a‘n

Chair of Trustees -
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The Collegilate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibiiity

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Collegiate Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of -control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to "
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility. to the CEO as accounting officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements. of both propriety and good financial mianagement and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between The
Colleg|ate Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reportmg to the
governing body any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
Statement of trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 10 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

- Trustee Meetings attended "~ Out of a possible
Ms J Akala 4 8
Mr K Beattie 7 10
Mr P R Hogan, Chair 9 10
Mrs F McSorley 8 10
Mr T Rodwell 6 10
Mr S Rowley 5 10
Mr D Butler 9 10
Mr S Dey, Chief Executive & Accountlng Officer 10 10

.Mrs M Hayden 8 10
Mr S Ghani 1 1
Mr J Palmer 1 1
Mr V Rapley 0 0

Members made the decision to increase the Board to eleven Trustees in December 2021 to reflect the growth of
the Trust and provide additional capacity.

- The Board ensures clarity of vision, ethos and strétegic direction of the Trust and holds the CEO to account for
the educational and financial performance of the organisation.

Declaration of Interest forms, including related party information and conflicts of interest, are completed annually
by the Members, Trustees, Local Governors, Senior Executives, Senior Leadership Team and any staff
managing budgets. These forms are held centrally by the Governance and Compliance Manager. A Register of
- Interest is collated for Members, Trustees and Local Govemnors and published on the Trust's website. This is
managed and updated throughout the year by the Governance and Compliance Manager. This register and
specific information are shared with Clerks of the Local Governing:Body so that they are able to identify any
potential, actual or percelved conflicts which can then be avoided or appropriately managed at meetings. At any
governance meeting, there is a standing agenda item for any Member, Trustee or Local Governor to declare any
_interest in the meeting, Conflicts of interest of Trustees are managed in line with articles 97 & 98.

The conflict of interest identified by the CEO and CFO being married has been discussed confidentially and in

detail by the Trust Board. Supported by legal and regulatory advice, appropriate measures have been put in
place to mitigate any conflict arising from this relationship and to ensure absolute transparency.
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The Collegiate Trust
(A .¢ompany limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)
(continued)

At the end summer term 2023 all Trustees completed a self-evaluatlon which highlighted areas fof development
to improve the Board's performance. Over the year the Board's main priorities have been to oversee all children
returning to pre-COVID -19 levels of education through utlllsmg the catch-up fundlng efﬂcrently and effectlvely,
that safeguarding is paramount and consistent across all areas of the Trust and that there is-a key focus on the
wéllbeing of staff and ch||dren at The Collegiate Trust.

Trustees receive; ’ : '
Monthly management accounts from the Chief Finance Officer
Termly data dashboards from the Director of Education
Termly CEO'réport
Annual Evaluation Reports frorn éach school
Annual Development Plan from each school
) Teaching, Leaming & Leadershlp Revnews on those schools on'which completed from the Difector of
. ‘Education

* 8 o s s

.Committees

The Audit, Risk & Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to:

. oversee all aspects of finance, risk and. audit arrangements of the Trust.

. tontribute to those aspects of the Trust's Strateglc Plan that affect the deployment of financial or other
capital resources and subsequéntly to ensure they are used: effectively and efficiently

. review, on behalf of the Board of Directors, ‘those statutory policies and procedures which fall-within the

remit of the Committee.and to recommend their approval to the Board.

Attendance durmg the year at meetings of the ARFC was as follows:

Trustee ' Meetungs attended . Outof a possible
Mr P Hogan 4 6
Mr S Rowley 6
Mr D Butler (appomted 13 May 2023) 2 2
Ms J Akala (resigned 13 May 2023) 3 4
Mr A Golova 4 6
Mr L McGivern 6 6

The CEO, CFO and COO also attend ARFC as hon-voting members to provide p‘rofessibnal input.

The Learning & Quallty Commlttee (LQC) is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to
monitor and evaluate the educatlonal performance of: schools within the Trust and of the Trust overall.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the LQC was as ‘follows‘:

Trustee ' : Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mrs F McSorley
Mr T Rodwell
Mrs D Martin
.Mrs C Hartland
Mr D Butler
Mrs M Hayden

N AN ANS
F NN

The CEO .and Director of Education also attend LQC as non-voting members to provide professional input.

Page 16



The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of
public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received:

. The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for-money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarkmg data where appropriate.

" The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
faillure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify

~and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically: The system of internal control has béen in place in The Collegiate Trust for the
period 1st September 2022 to 31st August 2023 and up to the date of approval of thé annual report and financial
statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant
risks that has been in place for the period 1st September 2022 to .31st August 2023 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of
Trustees. ‘

The risk and control framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures mcludlng the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. It
lncludes .

.. comprehensave budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees
. regular reviews by the ARFC of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of

major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

setting targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
delegation of authority and segregation of duties

identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint
an external audit firm to carry out this work. The Trustees considered this option to be more effective than
appointing a Trustee to carry out a programme of internal checks or to appoint the CFO of another trust to
perform a peer review. Consequently, Bishop Fleming have been appointed as internal auditors, with their role
including giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the Trust's financial systems.
The checks carried out in the current period were: g

Budgets & financial monitoring
Income

Bank & petty cash

Credit card

Fixed assets

Compliance

Governance & regularity

e e 8 o o ¢ o
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

The risk and control framework (continued)

. Payroll
. Information technology
. Expenditure .

The review of each area involved recording and evaluating the systems and controls in place within the area,
including reference to the ATH. Testing took place to evaluate whether the systems operated as recorded and to
establish whether the control procedures within the system were operating effectively. In any instance of non-
compliance with the Trust s controls, the samples were extended to ascertain scale of any issues.

On an annual basis the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, through the ARFC on the operation of
the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of Trustees' financial responsibilities.

The internal auditor has delivered the agreed programme of work-as planned. For this year, it was requested by '
the Trust that additional testing was performed on strategic and operational review. There are no material control
issues arising as a result of their work. .

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control.
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the work of the internal auditor
. the work of the external auditor
. the financial management and govermance self-assessment process

the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal

control by the ARFC and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in
place

er of the members of the Board of Tmstees on 14 December 2023 and signed on their behalf

by:

Phl lp Hogan
Chair of Trusteés
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The Colleglate: Trust.
(A company l_imited by. guarantee) B . )

Statement of Reguiar;iiy, Propriety and:Compliance

As accountmg officer of The Colleglate Trust, | have considéred my responsibility to notify the academy Board'of
Trustees and the Education and -Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-

- compliance ‘with terms: and conditions: of all funding, including. for estates safety and management, .under the
funding agreement between the academy and the Secretary of. State for Education. As part of my consnderatlon i
have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy- Trust Handbook 2022 including responSIbllmes for
estates safety and management. (

I.confirm that | and the academy Board of Trustees are able to udentnfy any mateérial irregular, or impropeér Useé of
all funds by the academy; or materlal non-compllance with the terms‘and condltlons of funding under the
academy's funding agreement: and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compllance have been discovered
‘to date. If any instances are identified after. the date of this statement, these will bé notified to the board of
Trustees:and ESFA. .

,fowv
Mr Soumick Dey

Accountlng Officer
Date; 14 Deceniber 2023
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities
for the year ended 31 August 2023

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report dnd the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction publlshed by the Education and .Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards. (United ngdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfi éd that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the charitable company and of their incoming resources and
application of resources, including their income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing thesé financial -
statements, the Trustees are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods.and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023,

make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnate to presume that the
group will continue in. business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate ‘accounting records that are sufficient to show and. explain

the Group and the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable. accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group -and the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial

statements-comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the

Group and the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of

fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that .in their conduct and operation the Group and the charitable
company apply financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grarits received from ESFA/DfE have .been
applled for the purposes.intended.

The Trustees are responsnble for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the group's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:-

' ‘(\Q\y hoqw

-------------------------------------------------

Mr P R Hogan
Chair of Trustees.
Date: 14 December 2023
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Collegiate Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financiai statements of The Collegiate Trust (the ‘parent Academy Trust) and its
subsidiaries (the ‘Group') for the year ended. 31 August 2023 which compriseé the Consolidated statement of
financial activities, the Consolidated balance sheet, the Academy Trust balancé sheet, the Consolidated
statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. Thé
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparatlon is applicable law, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republlc of Ireland', the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

-

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's.and of the parent Academy Trust's affairs as at'31
August 2023 and of the Group's |hcommg resources and -application of resources, including its income
and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in -accordance wnth Umted Kingdom Generally. Accepted Accountlng
‘Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the ‘Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Fundlng
Agency. .

‘Basis for opinion
4

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of .our report. We ‘are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we -have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evudence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provnde a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to-events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on thé Group's or the parent Academy
Trust's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for Iissue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to gomg concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report. )
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Collegiate Trust
(continued) . .

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditors' report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the othér information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
-extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurarice conclusion théreon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to-a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that theré is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to repbft in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: .

o the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

. -the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with -applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the Ilght of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent Acaderny Trust and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report
including the Strategic report.

We-have nothing to report in respect of the following matters-in relation to whlch the Companles Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. the parent Academy Trust has not kept adequate accounting records, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent Academy Trust financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees’ responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the préparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent
Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concemn and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Group
or thé parent Academy Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to .do so.
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of The. Collegiate Trust
(continued) .

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected-to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detectmg irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below .

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud |

Based on our understanding of the Academy Trust and the sector as a whole, and through discussion with the
Trustees and other management (as required by auditing standards), we identified that the principal risks of non-
compliance with laws and regulations related to child protection and safeguarding, health- and safety and
employment law. We considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the
financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation
of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, Statement of Recommended Practice, Academies
Accounts Direction, Academies Financial Handbook, taxation and pension legislation. We communicated
identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to- any indications of non-compliance
throughout the audit. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of
the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were
related to posting inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure, management bias in -
accounting estimates and judgemental areas of the financial statements such as the valuation of land and
buildings and revenue and noncompliance with financial management and governance requirements which are
consistent with the obligations of public funded bodies. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team

included: : :

. Discussions with management and assessment of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations and fraud, and review of the reports made by management and internal audit; and

. Assessment of identified fraud risk factors; and

. Consideration of income streams, completeness of income and compliance with the obligations of funders
including the ESFA

. Testing of internal controils procedures relating to expenditure potentially more susceptible to fraud and

other irregularities including the mlsuse of public funding in areas such as cash, payroll and credit card
expenditure; and

. Review of cash and credit card expenditure to confirm no evidence of personal benefit; and

. Challenging assumptlons and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estumates
and .

. Checking and reperforming the reconciliation of key control actounts; and

. Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships, including related
party transactions, that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud; and

. Confirmation of related parties with management, and review of transactions throughout the period to

identify any previously undisclosed transactions with related parties outside the normal course of
business; and
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The Collegiate Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

 Independent auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Collegiate Trust

(contmued)

Performing anaiytical procedures with automated data analytics tools to identify any unusual or
unexpected relationships, including related party transactions, that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud; and

Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance reviewing internal audit reports and
reviewing correspondence with relevant tax and regulatory authoritres and

Review of corporate governance arrangements; and ' '
Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any manual entries made at the year end for financial
statement preparation. ’

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from thé events and transactions
reﬂected In the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.

- As part of an audit in accordance with 1ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professuonal

scepticism throughout the audut We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures résponsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or-the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness
of the Academy Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polucnes used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Trustees.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based .on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we .

" conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditors' report to the .

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtainéd up to the date of our Auditors' report.
However, future events or condmons may cause the Academy Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undertlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the fi nancial |nformat|on of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and srgmﬁcant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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(A company limited by guarantee) - o o .

. Independent auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Colleglate Trust
(contmued) .

" Use of our report ‘ .

This report is. made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report-and for no other purpose. To the

" fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

neoton Reevee P

Peter Manser FCA DChA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Kreston Reeves LLP

Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

" 19 December 2023
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularlty to The Collegiate Trust and the
Educatlon and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 12 July 2022 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by The Collegiate Trust during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been
. applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

This report is made solely to The Collegiate Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Collegiate Trust and ESFA those matters we
are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than Thé Collegiate Trust and ESFA, for 6ur work, for this report, or for
the condlusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Collegiate Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Collegiate Trust's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 29 May: 2012 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the. authorities which govern them. .

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything -has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2022.to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govemn them.

Approach

'We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a tést basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to The Colleglate Trust and the
Education & Skllls Funding Agency (continued)

Work undertaken
The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

- Reviewed the evidence used to support the Accounting Officer's sign-off of the regularity statement
- Reviewed expenditure against specific terms of grant funding within the fundlng agreement

- Reviewed that grants have been applied for the purposes intended

- Confirmed that intemal control procedures exist relatlng to expenditure incurred of cash and credit

cards

- Confirmed items claimed on cash and credlt cards are not for personal benefit

- Reviewed expenditure and considered whether any supplies are from related partles

- .Reviewed minutes of Trust Board minutes for declaration of interests

- Reviewed Governance arrangements C

- . Considered whether other income activities are permitted within the Academy Trust's.charitable objects

- Considered if borrowing agreements, including leases, have been made in accordance w1th the -

~ Academy Trust Handbook 2022
e Confirmed that procurement and tendenng procedures exist relatlng to expendlture and have been
© .complied with. : _ . _ \

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggést in all material respects the
“expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September-2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been

applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Knecton Qu{/u' ololP

Kreston Reeves LLP
-Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Date: 19 December 2023
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The Colleglate Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Consolidated Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expendlture account)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

- Note

Income from:

Donations and capital
grants

Other trading activities
Investments - :
Charitable activities

Hhr OOV W

Total income

Expenditure on:
‘Raising funds:
Charitable activities 8

Total expenditure - 7

Net (expendlture) /

income }
Transfers between

funds 19
Net movement in

funds before other

recognised gains

. Other recognised
gains:

Actuarial gains on.
defined benefit
pension schemes 25

Net movement in
funds

Reconciliation of
funds:

Total funds brought
forward

Net movement in funds

Total funds carried
forward

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted - fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ _ £ £ £ £
25,824 214,632 32,494,652 32,735,108 5,456,391
1,211,390 983,049 - 2,194,439 1,901,842
1,969 : - 1,969 286
- 32,867,131 - 32,867,131 27,810,153
1,239,183 34,064,812 32,494,652 67,798,647 35,168,672
1,662,083 . . 1,662,083 1,465,537
414,484 33,255,918 1,730,517 35,400,919 29,928,376
2,076,567 - 33,255,918 1,730,517 37,063,002 31,393,913
{837,384) 808,894 - 30,764,135 30,735,645 3,774,759
972,799 (1,156,774) 183,975 . -
135,415 (347,880) 30,948,110 30,735,645 3,774,759
- 1,411,000 - 1,411,000 12,194,000
135,415 1,063,120 30,948,110 32,146,645 15,968,759
1,486,797 (650,335) 62,389,375 63,225,837 47,257,078
135,415 1,063,120 30,948,110 32,146,645 - 15,968,759
1,622,212 412,785 93,337,485 95,372,482 63,225,837 .

The Consalidated statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 33 to 65 form part of these financial statemerits.
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The Collegiate Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)
- Registered number: 08058921

Consolidated balance sheet
.as-at'31 August 2023

Fixed assets

Tangible .ass;ts
Current assets

Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts fa'liing due within one
year .
Net current assets

Total-assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more

. than one year .

N_et a#sefs excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy Trust
Restricted funds:

Fixed a§set'fundsv
Restricted income funds

Restricted fu»ndsr‘excluding pension asset

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

" Note
14

15
.16

17

18

25

19
19

19
19
19

202
£
93,090,422
13,205 17,685
2,089,278 1,629,365
4,209,385 3,216,915
6,311,868 4,863,965
(2,963,449) (2,270,327)
3,348,419 '
96,438,841
(284,359)
96,154,482
(782,000)
95,372,482
93,337,485 62,389,375
1,194,785 728,665
94,532,270 63,118,040
(782,000) (1,379,000)
93,750,270
1,622,212
95,372,482

2022
£

62,011,199

2,593,638

64,604,837

64,604,837

11.379,000)

63,225,837

61,739,040
1,486,797

63,225,837

The financial statements on pages 28 tb 65 were approved and aiithorised for issue by the Trustees and are

signed o ehalf, by:

. MrP R Hogan
Chair of Trustees '¥NVI§
Date: 14 December 2023
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The Collegiate Trust :
(A company limited by.guarantee)
‘Registered number: 08058921

Consolidated balance sheet (continued)
as at 31 August 2023

The notes on pages 33 to 65 fé'rmpart)of these financial statements. -

Page 30



The Collegiate Trust .

" (A company limited by guarantee)
-Registered number: 08058921

Academy Trust balarice sheet
as at 31 August 2023

Note
Fixed assets
Tangible assets ' 14
Current assets
Debtors 16
. Cash atbank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year : _ 17.
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 18
Net assets exclﬁding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 25
Total net assets
Funds of the Academy Trust
Restricted funds: -
Fixed asset funds » ' ~ 19
Restricted income funds 19
Pension reserve . 19
~ Total restricted funds : 19
- Unrestricted income funds o 19
Total funds

2023

2022

£ . £

93,000,422 62,011,199
2,213,946 1,761,984
4,096,898 3,061,994
6,310,844 4,823,978
(2,962,970) (2._291 879)

3,347,874 2,532,099

96,438,296 . 64,543,298

(284,359) -

96,153,937 - 64,543,298

(782,000) (1,379,000)

95,371,037 63,164,298
93,337,485 62,389,375
1,194,789 '728,664
(782,000 (1;379,000)

93,750,274 61,739,039

1,621,663 1,425,259

-95,371,937 63,164,298

The financial statements on pages 28 to 65 were appr_oved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are

“signed on their behalf, by:

Mr P R Hoga
Chair of Trustees
Date: 14 December 202:

X \\o;é |

The notes on pages 33 to 65 form part of these financial statements.
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The Collegiate Trust
(A.company limited by guarantee)

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Note:
Cash flows from operating activities
Net-cash provided by qperét_lng'activiti'és . . 2-1_
Cﬁs}ivﬂovﬁs?_ﬁ{bjm investing activities- ‘ 22
_Ghange in cashand cashequivalents in the year
Cgsh kaﬁd cash equil\'/a‘!entéa'tthe, beginning of the ye.é." A
Cash ;'n,d'cash eqﬁiVaIe‘nts at thé end pf-the year - ‘ A 2324

The notes on.pages 33 to 65 form-pait of these financial statements
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e

1,082,665

(90,195)

992,470 -

12022
£
1,282,609
(334,099)

948,510

3,216,915 .

~2,268;405

4,209,385

3,216,915



The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements

1.

for the year ended 31 ‘August 2023

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Collegiate Trust is a charitable company- limited by guarantee and an - exempt charity

_Incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office is Riddlesdown Collegiate; Honister

Heights, Purley, Surrey, CR8 1EX. The principal activity of the Academy Trust is to provide educatlon
for pupils that satisfies the requirements of the Education Act 2002.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out bélow.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reéporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Repubilic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. - '

The Collegiate Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

The Consolidated statement of financial activites (SOFA) and Consolidated balance sheet
consolidate the financial statements of the Academy Trust and its subsidiary undertakmg .The results
of the subsidiary are consolidated on a line by line basis.

The Academy Trust has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006 and has not presented its own Statement of financial activities in these financial
statements.

The Academy Trust's functional and presentational currency is Pounds Sterling.

The Academy Trust's financial statements are presented' to the nearest £.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concem is appfopriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern.

The Trustees confirm that there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the gomg concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Group at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose. .

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guara‘ntee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

1.

Accounting policles (continued)

1.4 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Group has entitiement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can'be measured reliably.

Grants
Grants are Included in the Consolidated statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The .
balance of incoime received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is Shown in the
relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in -advance of meeting- any
performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its
recognition is deferred and included in creditors as-deferred income until the performance-related
conditions are met. Where entittement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Consolidated statement of financial activities in the
year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fuid. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the recelpt is probable and the amount can be refiably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hlre of facllmes is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Group has provided the goods or services.
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The Coliegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)

i

15 Expenditure

1.6

1.7

Expenditure is recogmsed once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economlc beneﬁt
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economlc beneﬁts will be required in settlement and

‘the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is cIassrﬁed by activity: The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs

involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs aftributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to-that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable t6 a single activity are- apportuoned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depréciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on ralsmg funds
This includes all .expenditure incurred by the Group to raise funds for'its charitable purposes and,
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading:

-Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Groups educational operations, including support costs :and costs

- relating to the governance of the Group apportioned to charitable activities.

All resoqrces expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Interest receivable

interest on funds held on _deposit is included. when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Group; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the institution
with whom the funds are deposited. .

Taxation

The Acaderhy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the ‘Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.8 Tangible fixed assets

19

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acqulred with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grénts are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Consolidated statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is .charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Consolidated statement of financial activities. Where tangibte fixed assets have been acquired with
unrestncted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestncted fund.

Depreciation is provided on .all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, .at rates calculated to write off the cost of éach asset over lts expected ‘useful life, as

‘follows

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

- Freehold property . -2% Straight Line
Leasehold property - = 2% Straight Lire
Freehold Improvements - 2% Straight Line
Computer equipment - - 25% Straight Line
Plant and equipment - 20% Reducing Balance
Fixtures and fittings - - 20% Reducing Balance
Motor vehicles ‘ - 25% Reducing Balance

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is ¢arried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial activities.

Stocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for

obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost lncludes all direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed
and variable overheads.

1.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settliement amount after any trade discount offered.

Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.11 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.12 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a resul( of a past

‘event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount

of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Group
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

1.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a
past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can
be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks -specific to the liability. The |
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.14 Financial instruments

The Group only holds basic financial instruments .as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and

financial liabilities of the Group and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost. as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the Academy Trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any
impairment. Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 17 and 18. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver -
services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the Academy Trust's
wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

1.15 Finance leases and hire purchase

Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts and finance leases are capitalised as tangible fixed
assets. Assets acquired by finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives. Assets acquired by hire purchase are depreciated over their useful lives. Finance leases
are those where substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership are assumed by the Group.
Obligations under such agreements are included in creditors, net of the finance charge allocated to
future periods. The finance element of the rental payment is charged to the Consolidated statement
of financial activities so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the net obligation
outstanding in each period. .

1.16 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Consolldated statement of financial activities
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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The Collegiate Trust v : . ' A
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.17 Pensions

- Retirement benefits to employees of the Group are provided by the Teachers' Penswn Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defi ned benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Group in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS Is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate:

The LGPS Is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Group in -separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets aré measured at fair value .
and liabilities are measured .on an actuarial basis using the projected ‘unit credit method and
discounted at a rate -equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surpl_us are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme ‘introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial activities and
comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and ‘interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by
the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the
scheme assets and the actual return on'the scheme assets is recognised.in other recognised gains
and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are reéognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. .
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

2.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

" Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on hlstoncal experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. .

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust trust makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liabllity. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects resuits from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Tangible fixed assets

The Academy Trust has recognised tangible fixed assets with a camrying value of £93,090,422 at the
reporting date (see note 14). These assets are stated at their cost less provision for depreciation and
impairment. The Academy Trust's accounting policy sets out the approach to calculating depreciation for
immaterial assets acquired. For material assets such as land and buildings the Academy Trust determines
at acquisition reliable estimates for the useful life of the asset, its residual value and decommissioning
costs. These estimates are based upon such factors as the expected use of the acquired asset and
market conditions. At subsequent reporting dates the trustees consider whether there are any factors such
as technological advancements or changes in market conditions that mdlcate a need to reconsider the
estimates used.

Where there are indicators that the carrying value of tangible assets may be impaired the Academy Trust
undertakes tests to determine the recoverable amount of assets. These tests require estimates of the fair
value of assets less cost to sell and of their value in use. Wherever possible.the estimate of the fair value
of assets is based upon observable market prices less incremental cost for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based upon a discounted cash flow model, based upon the Academy Trust's
forecasts for the foreseeable future which do not include any restructuring activities that the Academy
Trust is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance.
The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash ﬂow model as
well expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Critical areas of judgment:

Lease commttments

The Academy Trust has entered into a range of lease commitments in respect of property, plant and

equipment. The classification of these leases as either financial or operating leases requires the
governors to consider whether the terms and conditions of each lease are such that the Academy Trust
has acquired the risks and rewards associated with the ownership of the underlying assets.
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~ The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarante¢)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

2.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (continued)

Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme

Certain’ employees participate in a multi-employer defined benefit pension seheme with other Academy
Trusts in the region. In the judgement of the governors, the Academy Trust does not have sufficient

information on the plan assets and liabilities to be able to reliably account for its share of the defined
benefit obligation and plan assets. Therefore the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution
scheme. See note 26 for further details.

|nherited assets from local aut_hori_ty

The Academy Trust recognised fixed assets of £31,368,688, restricted funds of £546,632 and a deficit of
£332,000 relating to the LGPS pension schieme being the estimated fair value of assets and liabilities
transferred from London Borough of Croydon in respect of Woodcote High School; an exieiting academy;
into the academy trust, see note 31-.

in the prior year the trust recognised fixed assets of £5,130,000, unrestricted funds of £7,903 and a deficit
of £576,518 relating to the LGPS pension scheme being the estumated fair value of assets and liabilities

transferred from London Borough of Croydon in respect of Kenley Primary School, a school converted into

the academy trust.

Income from donations and capital grants

: Restricted :
Unrestricted Restncted fxed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 ] 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ _ £
Transferred on conversion - - . - - 4,561,385
Inherited from other Academy. : } _ '
. Trusts (note 31) . - 214,632 31,368,688 31,583,320 -
Donations . 25,824 ’ - ) - 25,824 8,867
Capital Grants . - - 1,125,964 1,125,964 886,139
. Total 2023 25,824 214,632 32,494,652 32,735,108 5,456,391
Total 2022 16,770 {576,518) 6,016,139 ' 5,456,391
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31. August 2023

4

* The Collegiate Trust
_ (A company limited by guarantee)

DfE/ESFA grants

‘General Annual Grant (GAG)

Other DFE/ESEA grants -
Pupil Premium

“Others
UIFSM-

©Other Government grants
Local. Alithority Grants

Total 2023

Total 2022

,lncqm,é from other trading activities

Income from facilities/services

Catering
School fund
School trips

" Music lessons
Breakfast club

Exam fees

Income from subsidiary trading activities

Total 2022

‘Fundinig for the.Academy Trust's educational operations

Restricted
funds
2023

27,510,974

1,410,895 -

2,153,127
© 189,344

1,602,791

Total
funds

2023 -

27,510,974
1 /,14'1;0!;‘895"
2,153,127

1,602,791

Total
funds
2022

23,853,604
1,201,046
1,187,293

162,987 -

1,405,223

32,867,131

32,867,131

27,810,153

27,810/153 -

27;‘811'(').1 53

Unrestricted Réstrit_:ted Total Total -
fiinds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
3 £ £ £

517,614 21,500 539,114 485,067
- 853,907 853,907 717,667
11,786 e 11,786 22,341
395,031 395,031 221,600
- 79726 79,726 66,101
- 12,898 12,898 . 22,359
: 15,018 15018 20,922
286,959 = . 286,959 345,785
11,211,390 983,049 2,194,439 1,901,842
1,006,212 895,630 . 1,901,842
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The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 August 2023

6. Investment inconie

Bank interest received
Total 2022

7. Expenditure

Expenditure on fundraising
-tr'adiﬁg:

Support costs

Activities:

Direct costs

Support costs

Total 2022

Educational operations

Total 2022

Analysis of expenditure by activities

21,245,516
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8,682,860

29,928,376

Unrestricted Total Total

funds - . funds funds

2023 -2023 - 2022

£ - £ £

1,969 1,969 286

286 286

Staff Costs P’r_emises Other Total Total -
2023 - 2023 2023 2023 2022

£ £ £ £ £

- - 1,662,083 1,662,083 1,465,537
24,029,384 - 1,438,353 25,467,737 21,245,516 .
3,341,711 2,793,550 3,797,921 9,933,182 8,682,860
27,371,095 2,793,550 6,898,357 37,0_63,002 31.393,913

24,232,733 1,811,352 5,349,828 31,393,913
Activities . :

undertaken Support Total Total

directly costs funds funds

2023 2023 2023 2022

£ £ £ £

25,467,737 9,933,182 35,400,919 29,928,376



The Collegiate Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

- Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

8.  Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs
Educational supplies
Staff development
Examination fees
Curriculum fees

Analysis of support costs

Pension finance cost
Staff costs
Depreciation
Premises costs

“Technology costs
Other support costs

. Professional services
Licences and subscriptions
Computer maintenance
School trip costs
School fund costs
Motor expenses '
Legal and professional-
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Total Total
funds funds
2023 2022

£ £
24,029,382 20,118,220
827,755 751,853
107,309 78,232
467,401 265,571
35,890 31,640

. 25,467,737

21,245,516

Total Total
funds funds
2023 2022

£ £
83,000 204,000
3,341,713 4,114,512
1,507,593 866,387
2,793,552 - 1,811,352
406,934 359,959
903,749 672,915
30,865 34,100
352,519 279,171
3,261 2,411
364,231 214,153
27,999 32,342
65,454 47,217

. 52,312 44,341
9,933,182 8,682,860
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9.

10.

'N'e't‘:(experidit'ur'e)lihcome

Net (expenditure)/income for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals.
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Feés paid to auditors for; ’

- audit
- other services

Staff

a. Staff '6osts

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Age,n'cy' ét_aff costs

. Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments

2022

2023
£ £
371,421 346,540
1,507,593 866,387 .
28,000 21,500
4,153 6,400
Group ‘Group ~ Academy Academy
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
20,167,659 16,801,850 20,452,046 16,803,659
12,123,401 1,782,772 2,123,401 1,782,772
4,727,045 5,396,600 4,727,045 5,396,600
. 27,018,105 23981222 27,302,492 23,983,031
303,176 229,599 303,176 229,599
49,814 21,911 49,814 21,911
27,371,095 24,232,732 27,655,482 24,234,541
Group . Group  Academy Academy
2023 2022 2023 2022
S £ £ B -
.49,814 21,911 49,814 21,911
49,814 21,911 49,814 21,911
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10.  Staff (continued)

b. Severance payments |

The Group paid 2 sevérance payments in the year (2022 - 1), disclosed in the following bands: . .

" Group Group
2023 2022
No. ' - No.

£0 - £25,000 - , : 2 1

c. Special staff severance paymenté

There ai’é.)no amounts included within staff restructuring.costs:which are nqnestatuiory / non-contractual

(2022: £Nil).
. d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed‘,by the Group and the Acaderny Trust during the year was as

follows: .
Group ' Group Academy Academy
2023 2022 2023 2022
No. No. No. No.
Teachers | - 324 285 324 285
Administration and Support 334 299 334 299
Management : 12 1 12 11

670 595 670 595
e. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employeé benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
© £60,000 was: :
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10.

Staff (continued)

e. Higher paid staff (continued)

In the band £60,001 - £70,000
In the band £70,001 - £80,000

In the band £80,001 - £90,000

In the band £90,001 - £100,000
In the band £100,001- £110,000

In the band £110,001 - £120,000
In the band £130,001 - £140,000

. In the band £140,001 -.£150,000

In the band £170,001 .- £180,000

In the band £1ao,001 £‘199,’00‘0'

Group
2023

19

10

- -k

Group
2022
No.
16

10

Thirty séven of the above employees participated in the Teschers' Pension Scheme During ‘the year
ended 31 August 2023, pension. ‘contributions. for these employees amounted. to ‘£645,670: (2022:
£557 ,342). Four employees patticipated ‘in the Local -Government Pension Scheme Dunng the year
ended 31 August 2023, pensmn contributions for:these- employees amounted to £64,044 (2022: £47,879).

f. Key management personnel

The key management personnel- of the Academy Trust comprise the, Trustees and the Semor
Management Team as listed :on page 1. The. total amount of employee beneﬁts (mcluding employer
pension contribitions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management
‘personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £1,690,142 (2022: £1,406,208). .
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11.  Central services
The .Group has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

. Finance, HR and school improvement services
¢  Management services

The Group.charges for these services-on the f'ollowing basis:
4.4% of GAG and other-unrestricted income (2022: 4.4% of GAG and other unrestricted income)

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2023 2022

L . e £

Riddlesdown Collegiate- o ' o , 566,691 491,357

Gossops Green Primary Schoo! _ 119,628 413,289

" Waterfield Primary ‘ , 77,727 76,882

The Quest Academy : 271,646 264,265

Courtwood Primary Schoo! ’ 61,044 . - 52,007

Quest Primary School - 48,332 46,177

_ Kenley Primary School ' 48,333 43,618
Woodcote High School . 145,212 -

Total - . 1,338,613 1,087,595
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12.

13.

Trustees' remuneération and expenses

Only one Trustee, the CEO,; has been paid remuneration or has received other benef ts from an
employment with the Academy Trust The value of the Trustee's remuneratlon and other benefits was as

follows;
2023 2022
‘ , , . £ £
‘Mr G H Smith, Chief Executive &-Accounting Remuneration . : 185,000 -
Officer ) 190,000
: Pension contributions paid . - 40,000 -
. . ’ 45,.'000
Mr S Dey, Chief Executive Officer. & Remuneration - 170,000 -
Accounting.Officer : . Co 175,000
. ‘Pension contributions: paid. 40,000 -
) 45,000

During the year ended 31 August 2023 expenses totallmg £NIL were renmbursed or paid. dlrectly to
Trustee (2022 - £N|I)

‘Other related party transactions ‘involving the Trustees.are-set out in.noté 29.

Trustees’ and Officers' insurance

and ofﬁcers from clalms arising from neghgent acts errors or omissnons occumng whllst on academy
business. The insurance provides cover up to £10, 000 000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustées and
Officers indemnity élement from the overall cost: ‘of the RPA. scheme .

s
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14, Tangible fixed assets

Group and Academy
_ Furniture.
Land and ~ and  Plantand  Computer Motor
Biiildings equipment machinery- equipment vehlcles Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ ..
Cost A 4
At 1. September o _ o o o E v
2022 66,968,668 1,147,332 654,421 1,215,376 15,521 = 70,001,318
‘Additions . 650,295 307,546 97,768 162,519 - 1,218,128
Assets o :
transferred from
existing academy - 7 o : ' ) A o
trust 30,770,000 202,868 - 395,820 - 31,368,688
At31 August _ o _ e
. 2023 : 98,388,963 1,657,746 752,189 1,773,715 15,521 102,588,134
Depreciation
At 1 'September » ‘ .
2022 6,299,238 596,651 355,825 726,763 11,642 7,990,119
.Charge for the - o L ,
year 983,446 219,902 72,703 230,571 971 1,507,593
At31 August ' _— ' ' ‘
2023 7,282,684 ~ 816,553 428,528 . 957,334 12,613 9,497,712
Net bookNéIUe
At 31 August T : . -
2023 91,106,279 841,193 323,661 - 816,381 2,908 93,090_,42-2
At 31 August o ' ' . :
2022 60,669,430 550,681 293.596 488,613 - 3,879 62,011,199

Included in land and buuldlngs is land at valuation of £21 891,500 (2022: £12,949,000) whlch is not
depreciated. ‘

During the year, the Academy Trust recognlsed land and. buildings of £30,770,000 in respect ‘of
Woodcote High School at the date of joining the Trist in accordance ‘with the proféssional valuation
- undertaken by SHW.
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15. Stock

Catering stock

16. Debtors

‘Dué:Within one year
Trade debtors

.. Amounts owed by:group undertakings:

. Other.debtors
" Prepayments and-accrued income’

Group Group

2023 2022

I £

13,205 17,685

‘Group. Group = Academy P{cadgmy
2023 2022 '2023 12022

£ g £ B
249,737 223679, 222,905  177,621.
s 156444 183,622
367,533 250,718 367,534 :250,718
1,472,008 1,154,968 1,467,063 1,150,023
2,089,278 1,629,365 2,213,946 1,761,984
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17. ,'Credltors,: Amounts falling due within one year

Group Group Academy Academy
2023 2022 2023 2022
: . ‘ £ £ £ £
Trade creditors . 690,974 470,921 680,260 466,173
Amounts owed to group undertakings ' - - 114,120 76,833
Other taxation and social security ) 626,340 446,229 621,348 439,412
Obligations under finance lease and hire : _ o
purchase contracts . 83,353 - 83,353 -
Other creditors o 799;929 503,441 697,734 462,715
Accruals and deéferred income - 767,853 849,736 766,155 ‘846,746
2,963449 . 2270327 2962970 2291879
) Group Group. Academy Academy
2023 2022 2023 2022
| £ £ £ -
Deferred income at 1 Se‘ptember 334,781 376,500 334,781 376,500
Resources deferred during the year 293,999 334,781 293,999 334,781
Amounts released from previous periods - (334,781) . (376,500)  (334,781)  .(376,500)
1293999 334781 203999 334,781

- The deferred income above relates | to:monies.received in advance of the year for school trips to take
place in 2023/24, Universal Infant Free School Meals and Other Local Government Grants which are

recogmsed over the period to which it relates

-

18. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Group  Academy  Academy
2023 2022 2023 2022
| | R £ £ £ £
Other loans ' . 106,196 - 106,196 -
Net obligations under finance lease and hire . o » )
purchase contracts 178,163 - 178,163 -
. 284,359 - 284,359 -
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19. Statement of funds

Balance at 1 ‘ Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
' 2022 . Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 1,425,259 » 952,223 - (414,484) (341,332) - 1,621,666
Trading N B ’
Company - 61,538 286,960 (1,662,083) 1,314,131 - 546
1,486,797 1,239,183  (2,076,567) 972,799 - 1.;622,21,2 A
Restricted
general funds
General Annual . : v '
Grant (GAG) 334,464 27,502,609 (25,537,808) (1,128,783) - 1,170,482
General . ‘ ; o
Restricted 67,482 1,529,681 (1,529,681) (67,482) - -
Other DfE / . N _ ' ,
ESFA Grants . 326,719 3,761,731 (4,103,638) 39,491 - 24,303
Other : ' .
Govemment . ' .
Grants - 1,602,791  (1,602,791) - - -

Pension reserve  (1,379,000)

(332,000)  (482,000)

- 1,811,000  (782,000)

(650,335)

34,064,812 (33,255,918)

(1,156,774) 1,411,000 412,785

‘Restricted -
fixed asset
funds

‘ Restricted Fixed

31,368,688  (1,507,593)

Asset Funds 62,011,199 4,218,128 - 93,090,422

DfE / ESFA , o

Capital Grants 378,176 157,019 (6,454)  (281,678) . 247,063

Other Capital : , ‘ ‘ .

Grants . 968,945 . (216,470)  (752,475) - .
62,389,375

32,494,652 (1,730,517)

183,975 . . - _93,337.485

TotalA Restricted
funds 61,739,040

. 66,559,464 (34,986,435)

(972,799) 1,41 ,000 93,750,270

" Total funds 63,225,837

67,798,647 (37,063,002)

- 1,411,000 95,372,482
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19.

Statement of funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Unrestricted funds are applied to the general work of the Academy Trust to- support activities inside and
outside the curriculum,

Restricted funds:

GAG represents funds to be used to cover the normal running costs of the Academy Trust.

. Pupil premium funding is provided in order to be used to support disadvantaged pupils and to assist them

in decreasing the attainment gap betwéen those pupils and their peers.

' UIFSM supports schools in delivering the legal requ;rement to offer free school meals to all reception, year

1 and year 2 pupils.

Other DIE/ESFA grants represents grants provided for speciﬂc purposes, such' as pupil premium which is

used to support disadvantaged pupils and assist them in decreasing the attamment gap.between them

and their peers.

Other .govemment grants represents those' grants provided for specific purposes to provide- additional

support to pupils where required.

The Restricted fixed asset fund represents the leasehold land and buildings and other assets which were
donated upon conversion to académy status, the value of fixed assets purchased since .conversion
including depreciation to the balance sheet date.

-DfE/ESFA capital grants funds is to prdvude the Academy Trust with its own capital money to address

improvements to bu1ld|ngs and other facilities. The balance on the fund represents unspent capital grant
money to be spent in 2023/24.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.
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19. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestricted
funds A
General Funds

Trading
Company

Restricted
general funds

" General Annual
Grant (GAG)

' General
Restricted

Other DfE /
ESFA Grants

" Pupil Premium

Pension reserve  (10,866,000)

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Restricted Fixed
Asset Funds

DfE / ESFA
Capital Grants

Other Capital
Grants

Total Restricted
funds

Total funds

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers . ' Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022
£ £ . £ £ , £ . £
1,124,246 677,485 (265,400)  (111,072) . 1,425,259
496 345783 (1,466537) 1,180,796 - 161,538
1,124,742 1,023,268  (1,730,937) 1,069,724 - 1,486,797
145,370 23,854,232 (21,614,973) (2,050,165) - 334,464

- 963,112 (904,130) 8,500 T 67,482
117,960 2,550,698  (2,668,658) 326,719 - 326,719

- 1,405223  (1,405,223) - . -
(644,000) (2,063,000) - 12,194,000 (1,379,000)
(10,602,670) 28,129,265 (28,655,984) (1,714,946) 12,194,000 (650,335)
56,451,677 5,130,000 (866,387) 1,295,909 - 62,011,199
283,329 624,106 (7,396)  (521,863) - 378,176

- 262,033 (133,209)  (128,824) - -
56,735,006 6,016,139 (1,006,992) 645222 - - 62,389,375
46,132,336  34,145404 (29,662,976) (1,069,724) 12,194,000 61,739,040
47,257,078 35,168,672 (31,393,913) -© 12,194,000 63,225,837

Page 54



The Collegiate Trust
- (A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

19

Statement of funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows:

2023 2022
. £ £
Riddlesdown Collegiate (including Cent}al Trust) . 1,276,818 879,309 .
Gossops Green Primary Schoo! . ' 299,178 202,321
The Collegiate Trust Trading Limited o : . 545 ~ 61,538
Waterfield Primary School . » . 99,388 59,712
The Quest-Academy o : 431,280 578,987
Courtwood Primary S¢hool A 238,022 - 253,385
Quest Primary School ' 58,843 162,281
Kenley Primary Schoo! (149,715) 17,929
Woodcote High School A 562,638 -
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 2,816,997 © 2,215,462
Restricted fixed asset fund : 93,337,485 62,.'389',3_75
Pension reserve i © (782,000) (1,379,000)
Total ) 95,372,482 63,225,837
The following académy is carryiﬁg a net deficit on its portion of the funds as follows:
Deficit
£

Kenley Primary School . : 149,715

The deficit at Kenley Primary School was as a result of an overspend in.staffing costs and a consequent
staff redundancy process.

The Academy Trust is taking the following action to return the academy to surplus:
The Trust have embedded a new support staff structure and a change of leadership across the school at

a more cost appropriate level. The Trust will also leok to incorporate in future budget periods a repayment
to repay back to reserves as part of the Trust's reserve policy. ’ . :

Page 55



* The:Colleglate Trust
(A company limited by-guarantee)

N’ot’esztb ‘the financial statements
for the:year.ended 31 August 2023

19.

Statement of funds (continued)

' Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Riddlesdown

Collegiate
(including
Central Trust)

‘Gossops Green -

" Primary.School

‘Waterfield

Primary-School

" The Quest

.Academy.

Courtwood
Primary School.
‘Quest Primary

School
Kenley Primary
School

* Woeodcote High

School

Academy Trust
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Teaching
_and L " ‘
educational Other Othercosts _ ’
support - support Educational excluding - - Total Total.
staff costs . staff-costs supplies depreciation 2023 2022
T S o £ £ £ £
9851994 1786166 652435 2080737 14,371,332  14/512452
2,205,831 183,380 79,673 372494 - 2,841,378 2,709,437
1,483,808 136,230 76,993 224862 1,921,893 1,731,317
4773308 542241 418217 1031488 6765344 5830817
1,321,767 - 115,158 42,360 192,789 1,672,074 1,606,091
1,101,721 91,025 27665 - 354265 1,574,676  1,508.090
944674 173,495 23319 211,126 1,352,614 1,163,785,
2,346,187 397,018 117,695 533115 3,394,015 -
24029380 3,424,713 1438357 5,000,876 33,893,326 29,061,989
~N
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20.

~ Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

1,486,797
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Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 93,090,422 93.09.0,'42-2 '
Current assets o 1,773,313 4,291,492 247,063 6,311,868
. Creditors due within one year (151,101) (2,812,348) . - (2,963,449)
Creditors due in more than one year - (284,359) - (284,359)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (782,000) - - (782,000)
Total 1,622,212 ° 412,785 93,337,485 95,372,482
An‘alysis of net assets between funds - prior year
. Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds -funds
2022 2022 2022 2022
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets A - - 62,011,199 62,011,199
Current assets ’ 1,579,082 2,906,707 378,176 4,863,965
Creditors due within one year " | (92,285) (2,178,042) - (2,270,327)
Provisions for liabilities and charges _ - (1,379,000) - (1,379,000)
Total (650.335) 62,389,375 63,225,837
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22.

23.

21. Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income for the year (as per Statement of financial activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation ‘ i

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Interest receivable '

Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Decrease/(increase) in stocks

Increase in debtors

Increase in creditors

Assets from Academy on transfer to Academy Trust
Assets transferred from local authority-on conversion

Cash transferred from local authority on conversion

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets ’
Capital grants from DfE Group .
Cash transfefred from locail authority on conveérsion

Net cash used in investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

" Total cash and cash equivalents
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Group Group
2021 2020
£ £
30,735,645 3,774,759
1,507,593 866,387
(1,125,964) (886,139)
(1,969) (286)
332,000 644,000
399,000 1,859,000
83,000 204,000
4,480 (5.224)
(459,913) = (259,043)
977,481 290,540
~ (31,368,688) -
- (5.130,000)
. (75,385)
© 1,082,665 1,282,609
Group Group
2023 2022
£ £
1,969 286
(1,218,128)  (1,295,909)
1,125,964 886,139
- 75,385
. (90,195)  (334,099)
Group Group
2023 2022
£ £
4,209;385 3,216,915
4,209,385 3,216,915
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24,

25,

" Analysis of changes in net debt

Ny At1
- September At 31
2022 Cash flows August 2023
£ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand ‘ - 3,216,915 992,470 4,209.585
- Debt due after 1 year , . T. (106,196) (106,196)
‘Finance leases ) - (261,516) (261,516)

3,216,91 5 624,758 3,841,673

Pension commitmerits

The Academy Trust's employees belong ‘to two princmal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-téaching staff, which is managed by London Borough of Croydon and West
Sussex County Council. Both are multi-emp‘loyer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuatlon of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2019 and of the LGPS 31

~ March 2022

Contributions amountmg to £581,128 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £407,611)
and are mcluded within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Schemé Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have thie option to opt-out of the TPS foliowing enrolme'nt.,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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25.

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptuons about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors.

The 31 March 2016 TPS actuarial valuation results wefe implemented from 1. September 2019. The key
elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation were: . .

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensioneble pay '(including a 0.08% administration
levy) ‘
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and.the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held .at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

) the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current

SCAPE rale is 2:4% above the rale-of CPl. assurned real rate of retun is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The latest actuarial TPS valuation results as at 31 March 2020, were released in October 2023. The
revised employer contribution rate, arising from this valuation, is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.

The employers pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £3,896.933 (2022 - £3,213,208).

" A copy of the valuation reports and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Y

‘Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
“academy trust has -accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution

scheme. The-academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.
Local Government Pension Scheme

The. LGPS is a.funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £1,824,000 (2022
- £1,303,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £1,412,000 (2022 - £1,001,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 412,000 (2022 - £302,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 15.1
to 24.7 per cent for employers and 5.5 to 12.5 per cent for employees

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy Trust, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
Academy Trust at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the

event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Edocation. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,
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25.

Pension commitments (continued)

_Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation

Discount rate for scheme liabilities

2023
%

2.95-3.05

2.95-3.05
5.2

2022
%

3.05-3.70
3.05-3.20
4.25

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements in mortality rates.

Retiring today

-Males

Females

Retirihg in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate -0.1% (2022: -0.1%)
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
CPlI rate +0.1% (2022: +0.5%)

Salary increase +0.1% (2022: +0.1%)

. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:
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2023 2022
Years - Years
21.5-21.6 219
241 24.1-242
20.4-209 227- 228
249-254 258-259
2023 2022
£000 £000

469 367

834 614

454 346
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25. Pension commitments {continued)

Share of sc_heme assets

The Group's share of the assets in the scheme was:

- At31 At 31 August
August 2023 2022
. - E £
Equities - 13,453,000 8,982,000
Corporate bonds o : . 3,571,000 2,738,000
Property : 2,478,000 1,930,000
Cash and other liquid assets - ' o 568,000 317,000
Total market value of assets ~° 20,070,000 13,967,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £(149,000) ('2022 - £(77,000))l
The amounts recognised in thé Consolidated statemenf of financial-activities are as follows:
' 2023 2022
£ £
Current service cost . . (1,811,000) (2,860,000)
Interest income 825,000 223,000
Interest cost . " (908,000) (427,000)
Total amount recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial
. activities . . (1,894,000) (3,064,000)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefut obligations were.as follows:
2023 2022
‘ £ R
At 1 September o 15,345,000 23,185,000
Transferred in on conversion to an academy trust ' 5,073,000 1,279,000
Service costs a ' . .- 1,811,000 2,860,000
Interest cost : 908,000 427,000
Employee contributions ' : o © 412,000 302,000
Actuarial gains ’ (2,385,000) (12,494,000)
Benefits paid (314,000) (214,000)
At 31 August . 20,850,000

15,345,000
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25.

26,

27

Pensron commitments (contmued)

Changes in the fair value. of the Group' S share of scheme assets were as follows

~

2023 2022
At 1 September » 13,966,000 12,319,000
Transferred.in on conversion to an academy trust - 4,741,000 635:000
Interest income o ' : © 825,000 . 223,000
Actuarual losses | S _ A o (974,000) (300,000)
Employer contributions : ' A 11,412,000 1,001,000
Employee contributions - , 412,000 302,000
Benefits paid T S (314,000).  (214,000)
At 31 August _ : 20,068,000 13,966,000

‘Operating’lease commiiments

At 31 August 2023, the ‘Group and’ the ‘Academy Trust: had commiitments to make fiture minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows;

- Group Group  Academy Academy

. 2023 2022 2023 2022

, £ - £ ‘

Not later than 1 year : 369,881 308,347 369,881 308;347
Later than 1 year and not Iater than 5 years . 430_,063 302,122 430,063 - 302,122

799,944 610469 . 799,944 610,469

Members' liability

Each member of the chantable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company. in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, $uch amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and’ ||abllmes contracted

before he/she ceases to be a member
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28,

29.

30.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all
transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtalmng their approval where required; and with the
Academy Trust's financial regulations and nérmal procurement procedures relatlng to connected and
related party transactions.

'Croydon’ Headteachers Association (CHTA)

A network to provide networklng. support and training to the Headteachers of education providers in
Croydon. The Chief Executive and Accounting Officer, Mr S Dey, was appointed a director of CHTA on
the 1 September 2022. The former Chief Executive and Accounting Officer, Mr G H Smith, resngned as'a
director on 31 August 2022.. The Principal of The Quest Academy, Mr A’ Crofis; is also a director of the
CHTA. During the year the Academy Trust paid £103 (2022: £2,442) for their services. There were
amounts of £Nil (2022: £Nil) due to the partnership as at the year.end.

Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds t6 students as an .agent for the ESFA. In .the
accounting period ending 31 August 2023 the tfust had unspent funds brought forward of £38,976 (2022:
£31,665), received £20,850 (2022: £25 ,077).and disbursed £19,720 (2022: £17,766) from the fund. The
Trust had unspent funds carried forward of £79,545 (2022: £38,976) and these are included within

" creditors: amounts falling due in léss than one year relating to undistributed funds.

Controlling party

The Academy Trust is run by the management team on a day to day basis. Strategic decisions are made
by the Board of Trustees. There is no ultimate controlling party.
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: 31. Transfer of existing académies into the academy trust

Transferred<in Woodcote High School

Intangible asseté

Tangible fixed assets
Long-term leasehold property
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment
Current assets

Debtors.due within one year
Cash-at barik and'in hand"

Liabilities ‘
Creditors due within one year
Creditors due after one year
Pensions C

Pensions - pension scheme liabilities

- Net assets

Page 65

Value

reported by
transferring  .Fair value Transfer in
trust adjustments recognised
£ £ ‘ £
17,776,300 12,993,700 30,770,000
202,868 . 202,868
395,820 - 395,820
106,532 ' - 106,532
886,653 - 886,653
© (162,194) - (162,194)
(284,359) - (284,359)
(332,000) - (332,000)
18,589,620 12,993,700 31,583,320



